

Ersel Gestion Internationale S.A.

# **Engagement and Voting Rights Policy**

1.12.2022



# Company Policy

1.12.2022	Engagement and Voting Rights Policy	Version: 3
-----------	-------------------------------------	------------

Process Owner:	The Conducting Officer in charge of the Compliance function
Department(s) impacted:	All
Basis material, comments:	Versions 1 was based on a template provided by sister company Ersel AM. Version 3 has been reviewed but no update had to be made. Only the reference to an annual review has been dropped as, with experience in the last years, this Policy, being very strict, is very stable and does not require an annual review. The ExCom of the 1.1.2022 concurs and considers that it is not required to communicate a non modified policy to the Board.

Reviewed by	validated by	Date of approval by the Board
-	The CO in charge of Procedures, Henri Ninove	20.5.2011
ExCom	The CO in charge of Procedures, Henri Ninove	23.7.2021
ExCom on 1.12.2022	The CO in charge of Procedures, Henri Ninove	NA

#### **Change Mechanism**

- Any requirement for change must be addressed to the process owner.
- For documents with draft status, the author may make changes.
- For documents with controlled status (= which has been reviewed, validated or approved), changes must be approved by the staff / Committee which has reviewed, validated or approved the draft.
- As per EGI Procedure for Policies&Procedures set up, the Conducting Officer in charge of the Procedures may make formal changes alone without further reporting to the ExCom or the Board: formal changes are, for example, correcting typing mistakes, sub dividing a paragraph but also precising or detailing a definition without altering the sense.
- In order to speed up updates of the procedures, the process owner, in agreement with the ExCom and the Conducting Officer in charge of the Procedures, may make alone minor changes provided they are beneficial to the clients/investors/ the ManCo.
- Any change must be subsequently reported to the Board.

Regulatory Background:	See section III. REGULATORY FRAMEWORK
------------------------	---------------------------------------



Company Policy		
1.12.2022	Engagement and Voting Rights Policy	Version: 3

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

§ number	Title	Page
	TABLE OF CONTENTS	
I.	PREAMBLE, PURPOSE AND SCOPE	
I.1.	Preamble	
I.2.	Purpose of the Policy	
I.3.	Scope of the policy	
I.4.	Obligation to have a Policy / to publish it	
I.5.	Policy approval and review	
II.	ABBREVIATIONS AND DEFINITIONS	
II.1.	Abbreviations	
II.2.	Definitions	
III.	REGULATORY FRAMEWORK	
III.1.	Long term shareholder engagement	
III.2.	Voting rights	
IV.	RESPONSIBILITIES	
IV.1.	Board	
IV.2.	Executive Committee	
IV.3.	The Investment Committee and the Conducting Officer in charge of investment	
	management	
IV.4.	The fund managers	
IV.5.	The Compliance Function	
IV.6.	The Internal Audit Function	
V.	ENGAGEMENT AND VOTING RIGHTS PROCESSES	
V.1.	Monitoring Investee Companies	
V.2.	Engagement Processes	
V.3.	Exercising voting rights	
V.4.	Independence, conflicts of interest, and transparency	
V.5.	Divestment	
VI.	<b>DELEGATION OF INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT – DUE</b>	
	DILIGENCE ON DIMs	
VI.1.	Delegation to DIMs	
VI.2.	Delegation to EGI by third party ManCos	
ANNEX 1	EGI'S ORIENTATIONS IN TERMS OF VOTING	



Company Policy		
1.12.2022	Engagement and Voting Rights Policy	Version: 3

#### I. PREAMBLE, PURPOSE AND SCOPE

#### I.1. Preamble

As an Investment Fund Manager, Ersel Gestion Internationale SA (also referred to hereinafter as EGI or the IFM or the ManCo or the Company) undertakes to reasonably and responsibly exercise the rights relating to the financial instruments in the portfolios it manages, particularly equity portfolios. It operates in the conviction that good governance standards are fundamental to ensure confidence in capital markets and that the role played by institutional investors, managers and their advisors is important in the functioning of listed companies, in line with the goals of the European Union to "encourage long-term shareholder engagement" and to contribute to "greater shareholder involvement in corporate governance" (cf. Recitals 3 and 14 of the Shareholder Rights Directive II).

EGI will engage corporations in which its funds invest and will exercise its voting rights in complete independence and in the sole interest of the investors, with the main aim of increasing the value of their investments, in the mid to long term.

## I.2. Purpose of the Policy

The purpose of EGI Engagement and Voting Rights Policy ("the Policy") is to define the requirements and strategies adopted by EGI with reference to:

- the monitoring of corporate actions;
- interventions in corporate governance so-called "engagement";
- the exercise of voting rights in a manner consistent with the goals and the investment policy of the Fund concerned;
- the prevention and management of conflicts of interest resulting from the exercise of voting rights.

This Policy is implemented in compliance with regulations in force, particularly art. 37 of EU Delegated Regulation 231/2013, art. 124-quinquies and art. 3 octies of Directive 2007/36 as amended by EU Directive 2017/828 and CSSF Circular 18/698. See below, *III. REGULATORY FRAMEWORK*.

This Policy complies also with the guidelines issued by the European Fund Management Association (the "EFMA Stewardship Code"). These guidelines provide a set of best practices for collaboration between management companies and listed companies in which the former invest within the framework of collective asset management and portfolio management service. The goal is to foster strong links between corporate governance and the investment process. These guidelines apply to companies listed on a regulated market, to the extent that they are compatible with the regulations of the company's country of establishment and/or listing.

EGI applies the above guidelines with a flexible and proportional approach, considering the size of its participations or the importance of its investment in relation to the assets managed, but also considering the utility and effectiveness of the interactions with respect to the interests of the investors and the possibility of impacting the company's decisions.



Company Policy		
1.12.2022	Engagement and Voting Rights Policy	Version: 3

# I.3. Scope of the policy

#### *I.3.1.* Products and services in the scope of this Policy

This Policy applies to EGI fund management, in particular UCITS, AIFs or RAIF.

#### *I.3.2.* Functions and staff in the scope of this Policy

The functions and persons that are primarily in the scope of this Policy are:

- the investment function, primarily the investment managers,
- the regulatory control functions (Compliance and Risk Management).

However all EGI employees are directly or indirectly concerned as the respect of the values defined in this Policy is not limited to certain functions or categories of staff but to the whole staff community of EGI as these values are a collective goal of the entire Company.

#### I.3.3. Delegate Investment Managers

See below VI. DELEGATION OF INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT.

## I.4. Obligation to have a Policy / to publish it

#### I.4.1. Art. 124-quinquies of Directive 2007/36

Notwithstanding paragraph 3, institutional investors and asset managers shall adopt and publicly disclose a commitment policy describing how they integrate shareholder commitment into their investment strategy. The policy shall describe the methods used to monitor investee companies with regard to significant matters, including strategy, financial and non-financial performance, as well as risks, capital structure, social and environmental impact and corporate governance. It shall also describe the way they interact with investee companies, exercise voting and other rights attached to shares, cooperate with other shareholders, communicate with pertinent stakeholders of investee companies and manage existing and potential conflicts of interest in relation to their commitment. 2. Notwithstanding paragraph 3, institutional investors and asset managers shall disclose to the public, on an annual basis, the methods used to implement this commitment policy, including a general description of how they voted, an explanation of the most significant votes and the use of the services of voting consultants. They shall disclose to the public how they voted at general meetings of companies in which they are shareholders and may exclude votes deemed insignificant in relation to the subject matter of the vote or the size of the stake in the companies. 3. Institutional investors and asset managers shall provide clear and reasoned disclosure to the

public of the reasons for any decision not to comply with one or more of the provisions of paragraphs 1 and 2.

4. Institutional investors and asset managers shall comply with the provisions relating to conflicts of interest envisaged by the sectoral disciplines also in the implementation of the commitment policy adopted by them and published pursuant to paragraph 1. 5. The information pursuant to paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 shall be made available to the public free of charge on the website of the institutional investors or asset managers or by other means easily accessible online.

6. If the asset managers implement the commitment policy in relation to the exercise of voting rights on behalf of institutional investors, said institutional investors shall indicate where the asset managers have made the information on the vote public.

#### I.4.2. Art. 3 octies of Directive 2007/36

1. Member States shall ensure that institutional investors and asset managers comply with the obligations pursuant to points (a) and (b) or provide clear and justified disclosure of the reasons why they have chosen not to comply with one or more of said obligations. (a) Institutional investors and asset managers shall develop and



# Company Policy 1.12.2022 Engagement and Voting Rights Policy Version: 3

publicly disclose a commitment policy which describes how they integrate shareholder commitment into their investment strategy. The policy shall describe the methods used to monitor investee companies with regard to significant matters, including strategy, financial and non-financial performance, as well as risks, capital structure, social and environmental impact and corporate governance. It shall also describe the way they interact with investee companies, exercise voting and other rights attached to shares, cooperate with other shareholders, communicate with pertinent stakeholders of investee companies and manage existing and potential conflicts of interest in relation to their commitment. b) Institutional investors and asset managers disclose to the public, on an annual basis, the methods they use to implement this commitment policy, including a general description of how voting takes place, an explanation of the most significant votes and the use of the services of voting consultants. They shall disclose to the public how they voted in the general meetings of the companies in which they are shareholders. This disclosure may exclude votes deemed insignificant in view of the subject matter of the vote or the size of the shareholding in the company. 2. The information referred to in paragraph 1 is available free of charge on the website of the institutional investor and asset manager. Member States may make the information available to the public, free of charge, through other means that are easily accessible online. When an asset manager implements the commitment policy, also in relation to voting, on behalf of an institutional investor, the institutional investor shall indicate where the asset manager has made the information regarding voting public. 3. The rules on conflicts of interest applicable to institutional investors and asset managers, including article 14 of EU Directive 2011/61, article 12, paragraph 1, letter b and article 4, paragraph 1, letter d) of EC Directive 2009/65 and their implementing rules, and article 23 of EU Directive 2014/65, shall also apply in relation to commitment activities.

#### I.4.3. Website

This Policy is published on EGI website (which is part of Ersel Group website).

#### I.5. Policy approval and review

This Policy and its updates are submitted for approval to the Company's Board of Directors according to *EGI Procedure for Policies& Procedures set up* which provides inter alia for a preliminary review by the Executive Committee.

This Policy is reviewed every 3 years as per EGI Procedure for Policies&Procedures set up but, if necessary, it is updated with reference to the evolution of the applicable regulations and generally accepted principles of corporate governance, and also to the experience resulting from the exercise of voting rights related to the securities in EGI Funds portfolios.



Company Policy		
1.12.2022	Engagement and Voting Rights Policy	Version: 3

#### II. ABBREVIATIONS AND DEFINITIONS

#### II.1. Abbreviations

Abbreviation	Meaning
AIF (M)	Alternative Investment Fund (Manager)
СО	Conducting Officer
DD	Due diligence
DIM	Delegate investment Manager
EGI Funds or EGI UCI	All EGI funds or UCIs, whether UCITS, SICAVs, SIFs, AIFs of which EGI is the IFM
ESG	Environment, social, governance
ExCom	EGI Executive Committee
IFM, ManCo, the Company	EGI as Investment Fund Manager = Management Company and/or AIFM
IMA	Investment Management Agreement
regulation(s)	Used as a generic term for all treaties, EU Regulations and Directives, ESMA guidelines, Luxembourg laws, GDR, CSSF Règlements and Circulars applicable to EGI and its Funds
Regulation(s)	Used sensu strictu for EU, Grand ducal and CSSF "Règlements"

#### II.2. Definitions

**Conducting Officer:** a member of the IFM's senior management whose nomination has been validated by the CSSF.

**Executive Committee:** the committee composed of all the Conducting Officers of the Company in charge of the day to day management of the Company under the supervision of the Board, in accordance, inter alia, with CSSF Circular 18 -698.

**Investee Company** means companies which have their registered office in a Member State and the shares of which are admitted to trading on a regulated market situated or operating within a Member State.

**Proxy Advisor** means a legal person that analyses, on a professional and commercial basis, the corporate disclosures and, where relevant, other information of listed companies with a view to informing investors' voting decisions by providing research, advice or voting recommendations that relate to the exercise of voting rights.



Company Policy		
1.12.2022	Engagement and Voting Rights Policy	Version: 3

#### III. REGULATORY FRAMEWORK

The Luxembourg regulatory framework is based on international recommendations and treaties, EU regulations which are either applicable directly (Règlements) or transposed into national law, and Luxembourg laws, regulations, circulars and guidelines.

## III.1. Long term shareholder engagement

#### III.1.1. European level

The applicable European Union Directives include the following:

- Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 231/2013 of 19 December 2012 supplementing Directive 2011/61/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to exemptions, general operating conditions, depositaries, leverage, transparency and supervision.
- Directive (EU) 2017/828 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 17 May 2017 (the Shareholder Rights Directive II or SRD II) amending Directive 2007/36/EC as regards the encouragement of long-term shareholder engagement (the Shareholder Rights Directive I or SRD I).

#### III.1.2. Luxembourg level

The applicable Laws and Regulations applicable in Luxembourg include the following:

• Law of 24 May 2011 on the exercise of certain shareholder rights at general meetings of listed companies, as amended, in particular by the Law of 1 August 2019 transposing Directive (EU) 2017/828.

# III.2. Voting rights

#### III.2.1. European level

The applicable European Union Directives and Regulations include the following:

#### **UCITS Management Companies and self-managed UCITS**

- Directive 2009/65/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 13 July 2009 on the
  coordination of laws, regulations and administrative provisions relating to undertakings for
  collective investment in transferable securities, as amended (UCITS Directive), as regards
  depositary functions, remuneration policies and sanctions.
- The Delegated Regulation of the Commission (EU) No. 2016/438 of 17 December 2015 supplementing Directive 2009/65/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to obligations of depositaries as amended.

#### AIFMs

 Directive (EU) 2011/61 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 8 June 2011 on Alternative Investment Fund Managers and amending Directives 2003/41/EC and



Company Policy		
1.12.2022	Engagement and Voting Rights Policy	Version: 3

2009/65/EC and Regulations (EC) No 1060/2009 and (EU) No 1095/2010 (AIFM Directive).

• Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 231/2013 of 19 December 2012 supplementing the AIFM Directive with reference to exemptions, general operating conditions, custodian banks, leverage, transparency and supervision, and in particular Article 37 title thereof (directly applicable in Luxembourg).

#### III.2.2. Luxembourg level

The applicable Laws and Regulations applicable in Luxembourg include the following:

#### **UCITS Management Companies and self-managed UCITS**

- The Law of 17 December 2010 relating to undertakings for collective investment (the "2010 Law").
- The CSSF Regulation 10-04 transposing Commission Directive 2010/43/EU of 1 July 2010 implementing the UCITS Directive as regards organisational requirements, conflicts of interest, conduct of business, risk management and content of the agreement between a depositary and a management company, and in particular Article 23 thereof.
- CSSF Circular 18/698 on authorisation and organisation of Luxembourg management companies, as amended, and in particular *Section 5.5.10. Exercise of voting rights* thereof.

#### **AIFMs**

- The Law of 12 July 2013 on alternative investment fund managers, as amended.
- Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 231/2013 of 19 December 2012 supplementing the AIFM Directive with reference to exemptions, general operating conditions, custodian banks, leverage, transparency and supervision, and in particular Article 37 title thereof (directly applicable in Luxembourg).
- CSSF Circular 18/698 on authorisation and organisation of Luxembourg management companies, as amended, and in particular *Section 5.5.10. Exercise of voting rights* thereof.



Company Policy		
1.12.2022	Engagement and Voting Rights Policy	Version: 3

#### IV. RESPONSIBILITIES

#### IV.1. Board

The Board is responsible for:

- approving this Policy and maintaining it,
- supervising the implementation of this Policy.

#### IV.2. Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is responsible to supervise the implementation of the decisions and indications given by the Board.

# IV.3. The Investment Committee and the Conducting Officer in charge of investment management

The Investment Committee

- assures that the managers' decisions to engage corporations in which EGI Funds participate and to participate to shareholders' voting are consistent with this Policy;
- reviews the voting right reports produced by the DIMs,
- holds a register of the votes casted by EGI.

#### IV.4. The fund managers

The fund managers

- monitor the Investee Companies,
- are the ones who decide at first level to engage corporations in which EGI Funds participate and to participate to shareholders' voting.
- They are the ones who decide on how to engage and vote.
- They perform this mission under the direct supervision of the Investment Committee and the Conducting Officer in charge of investment management.

# IV.5. The Compliance Function

The Compliance Function is responsible for verifying the compliance of all EGI functions with this Policy and with the regulation framework.

#### IV.6. The Internal Audit Function

The Internal Audit Function supervises the adequateness of EGI engagement and voting right processes, consistently with prevailing regulations.



Company Policy		
1.12.2022 Engagement and Voting Rights Policy Version: 3		Version: 3

#### V. ENGAGEMENT AND VOTING RIGHTS PROCESSES

#### V.1. Monitoring Investee Companies

EGI monitors the listed companies in which it has an interest. This activity focuses on economic-financial data and ESG matters and is carried out on the basis of flexible and proportional criteria in consideration of the size of the participation in the company or of the significance of the investment with respect to the assets of the UCIs managed.

The monitoring of the listed companies in which EGI has an interest is carried out on an ongoing basis through the analysis of financial data and corporate governance information published on financial information sites (i.e. Bloomberg, the listing markets, etc.) and on the websites of the companies, participation in meetings with companies and using research provided by analysts, info-providers, proxy advisors and/or consulting firms.

With reference to EGI Funds, EGI managers continuously monitor the planning of ordinary and extraordinary shareholders' meetings of all the companies (both Italian and foreign) in EGI Fund portfolios.

## V.2. Engagement Processes

#### V.2.1. Introduction

EGI believes that the relationship with the corporate bodies and/or the senior management of the investee companies is necessary and contributes to the creation of value in the case of long-term investments. This comparison is complementary both to the analysis of investments and to the exercise of voting rights, as it allows to address specific matters of governance, avoiding, in the first instance, the assessment of the divestment of the investment or an unfavourable vote.

#### V.2.2. Forms of engagement

#### a. Individual engagement

Where EGI sees fit, it may adopt forms of "active" engagement with respect to the company in which it has an interest, which translates into requests for specific meetings with the management and/or the investor relations team of the company in order to address matters of specific interest or any problem that has emerged during monitoring activities.

#### b. Forms of collective engagement

Should the monitoring of the company in which EGI has an interest reveal circumstances that are of concern and have potentially significant effects on EGI Funds, EGI may assess the adoption of forms of collective engagement. In particular, EGI reserves the possibility to act jointly in collaboration with other institutional investors or to participate in the activities of committees of managers, in the exclusive interest of EGI Fund investors.

The engagement activity, whether individual or collective, is carried out in compliance with internal and external regulations for the management of conflicts of interest and insider trading (market abuse).



Company Policy		
1.12.2022	Engagement and Voting Rights Policy	Version: 3

#### *V.2.3.* Cases where engagement is indicated

Typical cases where the IFM may consider that an engagement is indicated are:

- an income trend significantly below expectations for the sector to which it belongs;
- proposals for extraordinary transactions that have an impact on corporate strategies and/or the business model;
- the company's risk profile or matters that could jeopardise the rights of shareholders;
- or matters related to ESG risks and policies.

In General, EGI pays attention to the policies of the Investee Companies with a view that sound policies governance practices (that include ESG concerns) may create value for shareholders on the long run.

As a support for investment decisions, engagement decisions and voting right exercise, EGI may rely on research which provides information and analyses of Investee Companies, including their ESG approach, with a view of assessing its impact in terms of reputation, competition and business opportunities.

#### *V.2.4.* Companies that may be targeted for engagement

For the above purposes, EGI adopts an approach aimed at maximising the effectiveness of active engagement. This approach envisages the selection of companies on which to focus engagement activities, taking into account:

- the size of the investment in the company;
- the significance of the investment in relation to the portfolio managed;
- the utility and effectiveness of the interaction in relation to the interests of the investors;
- the real possibility of influencing the company's decisions;
- the importance of the investment to the portfolio managed.

To this end, EGI also takes into account relational, linguistic, geographical and cultural factors that may positively or negatively affect the effectiveness of the active commitment actions.

#### V.2.5. Reserved information

In the case that EGI runs across reserved information during this analysis process, EGI will comply to internal procedures such as *EGI Market Abuse Policy* and regulatory requirements in this matter.

# V.3. Exercising voting rights

#### V.3.1. Introduction

The exercise of the right to vote is carried out by EGI in the interest of EGI Funds Investors and in the light of the effective and real possibility to influence the decisions subject to approval by the shareholders' meeting.

#### *V.3.2.* Cases where voting is indicated

In application of the principle of proportionality, EGI prioritises attendance to the shareholders' meetings according to the qualitative/quantitative criteria listed below.

#### a. Pre requisite



Company Policy		
1.12.2022	Engagement and Voting Rights Policy	Version: 3

In order for EGI to participate to a vote, at least the following pre-requisites must be met:

- the total share of capital held by EGI Fund (taking into account the significance thresholds identified by the Company by type of financial instrument) must be relevant;
- the importance of the items on the agenda of shareholders' meetings.

EGI does not, however, exclude the possibility of exercising its voting rights also in the case of:

- shareholdings that fall below the significance thresholds identified by the Company;
- unlisted companies as well as unlisted closed-end UCIs, where such exercise is deemed appropriate or necessary in relation to the protection of the interests of the investors.

#### b. Participation criteria

EGI decides to participate to voting in view of the following criteria:

- cost-benefit of the participation;
- relevance of the points on the agenda;
- assessment of the utility of the participation;
- objectives and investment policy of the EGI Fund;
- possibility to have an actual impact.

#### c. Relevant topics

When assessing the opportunity to attend shareholders' meetings, EGI considers the importance of the topics to be voted on. Examples of important topics are:

- the election of auditors and board members;
- protection of shareholders' rights (profit and dividend distribution policies);
- analysis of the financial situation and approval of the financial statements;
- remuneration policies and incentive systems;
- extraordinary transactions;
- amendments to the articles of association;
- other decisions concerning or having an impact on risk management; including risks related to environmental and social sustainability;
- the corporate governance system;
- every other situation of particular interest in defense or support of the interests of minority shareholders when this is in the interest of the investors in EGI Funds.

**ANNEX 1** describes in more details EGI's orientations in respect to the above themes.

For the above purposes, EGI adopts procedures and measures aimed at:

- monitoring pertinent capital transactions (corporate action);
- ensuring that the exercise of voting rights complies with the investment aims and policies of the UCIs concerned;
- preventing or managing possible conflicts of interest arising from the exercise of voting rights.

#### V.3. Cases where EGI renounces to exercise voting rights

EGI does not exercise voting rights in cases where its independence is not assured or in case of potential conflicts of interest as per *section V.4.* below.

EGI does not exercise voting rights on stocks that are temporarily transferred, and under no



Company Policy		
1.12.2022	Engagement and Voting Rights Policy	Version: 3

circumstances does it bind itself to voting syndicates or block voting.

In any case, EGI will not exercise its voting rights in cases where such exercise is not beneficial to its investors, such as in the case where:

- the investment in certain financial instruments is of a temporary nature, forming part of a short-term investment strategy;
- the amount actually held in the UCIs managed is small in relation to the capitalisation of the issuing company;
- it is necessary to lock up the financial instruments for a prolonged period of time, which could prevent EGI from taking advantage of any market opportunities;
- the administrative costs associated with the exercise of voting rights are very high, also in relation to the amounts held on the various products managed and the real possibility of influencing the vote at the shareholders' meeting.

#### V.3.4. Appointment of members of the boards and auditors

When called to vote for candidates for the boards of directors and for auditors of listed companies, EGI considers the professionalism, respectability and independence of the candidates as well as the conditions of ineligibility and incompatibility.

#### *V.3.5.* Attendance to the shareholders' meeting

Attendance of shareholders' meetings can take place in the following ways:

- **direct attendance**: voting rights may be exercised by the Conducting Officer of the Investment Management function or by the manager of the specific EGI Fund or by another specially appointed staff member, with a specific proxy.
- Indirect attendance (by proxy): EGI shall send the documentation signed by the Conducting Officer of the Investment Management function, certifying the proxy given as well as the voting instructions for the individual items identified on the agenda of the shareholders' meeting.

In assessing how to exercise the voting right, EGI may enlist the support of one or more proxy advisors specialised in corporate governance and voting recommendations.

EGI does not delegate the exercise of voting rights to other Ersel Group companies, or to their representatives, unless this Ersel Group company is an EGI DIM and the IMA allows this.

#### V.3.6. Exercise of voting rights by DIMs

EGI may delegate the investment management of some of its (sub) funds to external investment firms ("DIMs"). In such case the DIM will normally exercise voting rights and engagement. The extent of the DIM's competence in terms of voting rights and engagement is defined in the IMA.

# V.4. Independence, conflicts of interest, and transparency

#### V.4.1. Independence

EGI engages Investee Companies and exercises its voting rights in complete independence, in particular independently from Ersel Group companies, whether sister companies or Group companies that control EGI.



Company Policy		
1.12.2022	Engagement and Voting Rights Policy	Version: 3

#### V.4.2. Conflicts of Interest mitigations

EGI pays a particular attention when exercising voting rights to conflicts of interest that could be detrimental to EGI Fund investors.

When there is a potential conflict of interest, EGI will assess whether it is preferable to abstain to a voting or to nevertheless participate in order to safeguard EGI Funds investors' interests.

EGI does not exercise the right to vote in companies that control EGI directly or indirectly, except in the case of meetings called for the renewal of corporate offices that are about to expire or if the Company deems it necessary in order to protect the interests of EGI Fund investors.

EGI staff members who manage a Client portfolio or an EGI Fund may not be members of the Board of the companies that are present in the portfolio / fund they manage.

#### V.4.4. Transparency of EGI engagement and voting rightsPolicy

This Policy and its updates are posted on EGI website.

#### <u>V.4.4. Transparency of the exercise of voting rights</u>

As per Art. 1ersexies (1)(2) of the 24 May 2011 Law, EGI undertakes to ensure the transparency of the votes cast when exercising its voting rights and mentions the most relevant votes in the funds management reports.

#### V.4.5. Voting register

The Conducting Officer in charge of Investment Management

- holds
  - a register of the votes cast by EGI managers during the year for funds directly managed by EGI;
  - the DIMs reports on the votes they have cast during the year;
- reports annually to the ExCom the most relevant votes.

#### V.5. Divestment

Divestment is an instrument of last resort, to be used only after the path of engagement and communication has been taken without success.



Company Policy		
1.12.2022 Engagement and Voting Rights Policy Version: 3		Version: 3

# VI. DELEGATION OF INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT – DUE DILIGENCE ON DIMS

#### VI.1. Delegation to DIMs

EGI may delegate the investment management of some of its (sub) funds to external investment firms ("DIMs"). In such case the DIM will exercise voting rights and engagement, as authorised by § V.3.6. The extent of the DIM's competence in terms of voting rights and engagement is defined in the IMA.

This obviously does not release EGI from its responsibility in terms of engagement and voting rights. EGI policy in respect to its DIMs is as follows:

- to require its DIMs to have engagement and voting rights policies similar to EGI's;
- to require in the SLAs of the IMAs that the DIMs report on their engagement and voting rights activities;
- to assure that EGI regular due diligences verify also whether DIMs have proper engagement and voting rights processes;
- to regularly monitor their engagement and voting rights activities.

### VI.2. Delegation to EGI by third party ManCos

EGI may be delegated the management of funds by third party ManCos. In such case, EGI will apply the present policy except when the IMA provides for different rules.



Company Policy		
1.12.2022	Engagement and Voting Rights Policy	Version: 3

#### ANNEX 1 - EGI'S ORIENTATIONS IN TERMS OF VOTING

#### 1.1. Management compensation

EGI believes that appropriately designed equity-based compensation plans, approved by shareholders, can be an effective way to align the interests of long-term shareholders and the interests of management, directors and employees. Consequently, EGI is opposed to plans that substantially dilute the shareholders' interest, provide participants with excessive awards, or have inherently objectionable features. EGI believes common stock and restricted common stock grants awarded in lieu of cash bonuses are the most preferred means of providing incentive to management and best align the interests of insiders with shareholders. EGI views stock options plans as the least desirable form of equity-based incentives because, unlike shareholders, the option holder has nothing at risk except opportunity costs.

- EGI will generally vote against plans where the potential dilution (including all equity based plans) exceeds 15% of the shares outstanding.
- EGI will generally vote against plans if annual option grants have exceeded 2% of shares outstanding.
- EGI will generally vote against plans that have any of the following structural features:
  - ability to re-price underwater options,
  - ability to issue options with an exercise price below the stock's current market price,
  - ability to issue reloads options,
  - automatic share replenishment ("evergreen") feature,
  - plans that can be amended without shareholder approval,
  - management having discretion in the granting of awards to non-employee directors.
- EGI will generally support measures intended to promote long-term stock ownership by executives. These may include:
  - requiring senior executives to hold a minimum amount of stock in the company (frequently expressed as a certain multiple of the executive's salary),
  - requiring stock acquired through option exercise to be held for a certain period of time (three years or longer is preferred),
  - using restricted stock grants instead of options.
- EGI generally supports expensing the fair value of option grants in order to recognize that value has been transferred to the option holder at the expense of the shareholder.
- EGI will generally support the use of employee stock purchase plans provided those shares purchased under the plan are acquired for no less than 85% of their market value.
- EGI will generally oppose the use of accelerated employment contracts that will result in total
  compensation (cash and present value of future payments, retirement benefits and equity-based
  awards) that exceeds three times annual compensation (salary and bonus) in the event of
  termination of employment.
- If EGI determines that executive or director total compensation is excessive compared to that of



Company Policy		
1.12.2022	Engagement and Voting Rights Policy	Version: 3

other similar companies, it may vote against any proposal that could result in increased compensation, or it may vote against the re-election of directors who are members of the board's compensation committee or it may vote against the re-election of all directors.

#### 1.2. Shareholder rights

- EGI believes that shareholders should have voting power equal to their equity interest in the company and should be able to approve (or reject) changes to the corporation's bylaws by a simple majority vote, to the extent permitted by state corporation or other applicable laws.
- EGI will generally support proposals to remove super-majority voting requirements for certain types of proposals. EGI will generally vote against proposals to impose supermajority requirements.
- EGI will generally vote for proposals to lower barriers to shareholder action (e.g., limited rights to call special meetings, limited rights to act by written consent).
- EGI will generally vote against proposals for a separate class of stock with disparate voting rights.
- EGI will generally vote for proposals to subject shareholder rights plans ("poison pills) to a shareholder vote.
- EGI will generally support proposals to adopt cumulative voting.
- EGI supports the right of shareholders to vote on a confidential basis.

#### 1.3. Change in corporate control

- EGI generally opposes measures that are designed to prevent or obstruct corporate takeovers. Such measures tend to entrench current management. EGI believes in free capital markets and that the potential transfer of corporate control through a takeover, hostile or otherwise, must be permitted to occur, if it is approved by the company's shareholders.
- EGI will generally oppose the use of accelerated employment contracts that will result in total compensation (cash and present value of future payments, retirement benefits and equity-based awards) that exceeds three times annual compensation (salary and bonus) in the event of termination of employment following a change in control of a company. EGI opposes such "golden parachute" plans because they impede potential takeovers that shareholders should be free to consider.
- EGI will generally vote against proposals to authorize preferred stock who's voting, conversion, dividend and other rights are determined at the discretion of the Board of Directors (commonly referred to as "blank check" preferred stock) and are intended to be issued in an anti-takeover situation. EGI will generally support the authorization of preferred stock if provisions are included that limit the voting rights to one vote per share and shareholders are permitted to vote on the issuance of preferred if it is to be issued in a takeover situation.
- EGI generally votes for the annual election of all directors and against classified boards. EGI
  believes that the shareholders should have the right to vote on all directors annually. Classified



Company Policy		
1.12.2022	Engagement and Voting Rights Policy	Version: 3

boards can be used to delay or obstruct a takeover that is in the shareholders' best interests.

- When voting on a resolution to approve a corporate merger or acquisition, EGI will make a
  determination of the merits of the proposed transaction based on EGI opinion of whether it will
  increase the long term economic value of the shareholders' investment. EGI may vote against such
  transactions where in its opinion the offer is at a price that is less than fair value.
- EGI will generally vote for resolutions endorsed by the board of directors regarding changes in the state of incorporation or increases in the authorization of common or preferred stock, unless in its opinion the purpose of the resolution is to obstruct a corporate takeover, reduce shareholders' rights or materially dilute the shareholders' voting or economic interests.
- EGI will generally vote for resolutions that change the state of incorporation, merger or other corporate restructuring which are in the interest of the shareholders. However, the EGI will vote against resolutions pertaining to takeover by an acquirer which are against the interest of shareholders.

#### 1.4. Election of directors

EGI will usually vote for the recommendations of the board of directors of the company soliciting proxies for directors, except when the board of directors has shown a history of approving poor corporate governance policies. EGI will make a determination based on the past actions of such board of directors compared with the corporate governance standard outlined in the EGI voting policy. If EGI determines that there is a deficiency in corporate governance policies, it may vote against certain directors, such as the members of a board committee or against all directors. EGI will vote against all inside directors if independent directors do not comprise a majority of the board of directors. EGI may also vote against any specific director if it has knowledge that the person has shown poor business judgment, is not qualified, or lacks personal integrity.

#### 1.5. Approval of independent directors

EGI will generally vote for the approval of the independent auditors, except where the audit and auditrelated fees comprise less than 50% of the total fees paid by the company to the audit firm. EGI believes the auditor's independence could be impaired if its non-audit fees are larger than its audit fees.

#### 1.6. ESG responsibility

EGI believes that ordinary business matters are primarily the responsibility of management and should be approved solely by the corporation's board of directors. Proposals in this category, initiated by shareholders, typically request that the company disclose or amend certain business practices. EGI will generally vote against these proposals unless it believes that the proposal has substantial economic implications which may favourably impact shareholder value.

#### 1.7. Changes in capitalization

EGI recognises the need for management of an issuer to have flexibility in the issue or buyback of shares to meet changing financial conditions. Changes in capitalization will generally be supported where a reasonable need for the change is demonstrated; however changes resulting in excessive dilution of existing shareholder value will not be supported.

#### 1.8. Other voting topics



Company Policy		
1.12.2022	Engagement and Voting Rights Policy	Version: 3

EGI believes other issues, including those business issues specific to the issuer or those rose by shareholders of the issuer, are addressed on a case-by-case basis with a focus on the potential impact of the vote on shareholder value. EGI reserves the right to vote against any resolution that goes against the interest of fund shareholders.